
 
 
Bellevue Transportation Commission 
November 10, 2005  Page 1 

CITY OF BELLEVUE TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
MINUTES 

November 10, 2005 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:  Chair Bell, Vice Chair Young, Commissioners Glass, Holler, 

Northey, Yuen 
 
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:  Commissioner Wendle  
 
STAFF PRESENT:    Franz Loewenherz, Kristi Oosterveen, Eric Miller, Kris 

Liljeblad, Jen Benn, Department of Transportation; Kathleen 
Burgess, Department of Planning and Community 
Development  

 
GUEST SPEAKERS:    None 
 
RECORDING SECRETARY:  Gerry Lindsay 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:33 p.m. by Chair Bell who presided. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Upon the call of the roll, all Commissioners were present with the exception of Commissioner Wendle 
who was excused. 
 
3. STAFF REPORTS – None 
 
4. COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY COUNCIL, COMMUNITY COUNCILS, BOARDS 

AND COMMISSIONS – None 
 
5. REPORTS FROM COMMISSIONERS 
 
Commissioner Young said he attended the October 29 meeting focused on rubberized asphalt.  He said 
the meeting was sponsored by several Eastside communities.  The idea is that the product can be used to 
reduce highway noise.  Several state representatives were present.   
 
Commissioner Yuen said he attended the Bel-Red Corridor Study open house along with Chair Bell on 
November 9.  Chair Bell added that the Commission will be kept up to date as the study progresses.   
 
6. PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Mr. Bill Serr, 1412 153rd Place SE, expressed concern with regard to how I-912 was handled.  He said 
it was too bad there no honesty displayed in explaining it.  Senate Bill 6103 has nothing in it enabling 
legislation; it does not in fact identify any specific projects.  The initiative was voted down because of 
the false information that was put out, and the highway department simply played the debate game with 
everyone.  Now they can do whatever they want, which is too bad.  Without an open and honest 
process, the citizens of the state have been given the wrong word.  The highway commission is no 
longer responsible to the secretary of the department of highways, so there is no oversight by citizens in 



 
 
Bellevue Transportation Commission 
November 10, 2005  Page 2 

that department, and no one can trust the Governor because she is not an honest person.   
 
Mr. Kurt Howeler, 16243 NE 30th Street, voiced concern with project NE-101 in Mobility 
Management Area 6.  The project involves bike lanes and a sidewalk on the south side of Bel-Red Road 
between 156th Avenue NE and NE 40th Street.  Microsoft paid the city of Redmond a lot of money for 
the installation of sidewalks completely around the Microsoft campus; those sidewalks have been 
completed, including along the north side of Bel-Red Road.  Microsoft also paid to have bike lanes 
constructed around their campus.  The new sidewalk does not appear to be experiencing much use.  It is 
easy for bicyclists to come up 164th Avenue NE then down NE 30th Street and 172nd Avenue NE 
going north to where it merges with West Lake Sammamish Parkway.  Bel-Red Road is the most 
heavily traveled road in the city; the speed limit is 40 miles per hour but most of the traffic heading 
downhill is doing 50 miles per hour or more.  When the Peach Tree development between NE 30th 
Street and NE 28th Street was put in, it was protected by a heavy tree line between the development and 
Bel-Red Road.  Redmond has already come in and cut trees on the Bellevue side of the road, and that 
has lessened the amount of noise reduction available for that neighborhood.  Any attempt to build a 
sidewalk and bike lane on the Bellevue side will eliminate all of the quieting effects between the busy 
road and the housing development.  Project NE-101 does not make any sense, especially given that 
Microsoft is planning to open up to Bel-Red Road at NE 30th Street.   
 
Mr. Ken Schiring, 16223 NE 28th Street, agreed with the previous speaker and said Sherwood Forest 
residents are working with the city currently to mitigate the impacts of the new access to the Microsoft 
campus at NE 30th Street.  With regard to the TFP candidate projects list, he said some of the 
descriptions are so confusing it will not be possible to figure out what they are until a drawing is made.  
One of the most confusing projects for the Sherwood Forest neighborhood is CR-100 which calls for an 
east-to-west U-turn on NE 20th Street at 156th Avenue NE with access management to Bel-Red Road.  
He said he will have to see a drawing of the proposal before saying for sure, it from the description it 
could be concluded that it will take quite a lot of land away from the adjacent shopping center.  With 
regard to OV-001, he said he is unsure why the project has scored so high.  The Commission should 
look at the project very carefully before making any recommendation.  It is unclear why the city would 
want to produce a lane that starts at Bel-Red Road, passes in front the shopping center, and goes no 
further than Northup where traffic would be forced into a right-hand turn right back onto Bel-Red Road.  
It appears the project will accomplish nothing at all.   
 
7. STUDY SESSION 
 
  A. Crossroads Center Plan 
 
Comprehensive Planning Manager Kathleen Burgess, Department of Planning and Community 
Development, noted that the study area is centered on the Crossroads Bellevue Shopping Center at 
156th Avenue NE and NE 8th Street and includes Top Foods, Pacific Village Shopping Center, and 
Crossroads Bellevue East.  The study takes into account only the Community Business (CB) areas.  The 
area has seen great change since the shopping center was built in the 1960s and several uses have come 
and gone.  In the late 1980s the shopping center was run down and quite a concern to the local 
community.  The 1988 Crossroads subarea plan had as its focus revitalizing the shopping center.  A 
new owner purchased the shopping center and has turned it into the thriving concern it is currently, one 
that serves as a center and focal point for the community.   
 
Ms. Burgess said the current shopping center owner and the city are aware of the fact that retail changes 
over time; that is the primary impetus for the study for which the city has the lead in partnership with 
the owners of the Crossroads Bellevue Shopping Center, Top Foods, and other property owners.   



 
 
Bellevue Transportation Commission 
November 10, 2005  Page 3 

 
An extensive community involvement process was kicked off in the spring of the year.  A survey was 
conducted in which the respondents were asked to say what they like and dislike about Crossroads.  The 
survey highlighted the fact that people love the area and visit it often.  A consultant was hired to work 
with the city and the major property owners to develop some preliminary alternatives to help jumpstart 
community discussion.  The idea is to work on a long-term vision for the Crossroads shopping area.  In 
October staff shared the conceptual drawings to various community groups, including Chevy Chase, 
Tam O’Shanter and Lake Hills, as well as a couple of English as a Second Language groups.   
 
Ms. Burgess said there is currently about 735,000 square feet of retail in the study area.  The property 
owners believe that is about as much retail as the market will hold and that there is no pressing need for 
much more.  Retailers and economists believe commercial will change over time.  The conceptual 
drawings include some small office and service uses, and some civic and community space.  The part 
that has drawn the most interest is the addition of 900 units of housing in the form of apartments or 
condominiums in the area; the idea behind the housing is to create a critical mass of housing with direct 
access to shopping, the park and transit.  The community has expressed concerns over adding any more 
housing to the area.   
 
Ms. Burgess shared with the Commissioners the three conceptual drawings labeled formal, district, and 
informal.  She pointed out that each concept includes a different access to the park and internal 
circulation system, and noted that parking is primarily in structures, either underground or behind the 
retail spaces.   
 
The primary concern voiced by the community has been in respect to the proposed residential uses.  
Ms. Burgess explained that each of the three concepts contains the same amount of commercial and 
residential uses but in different configurations.  The Planning Commission and the community has 
directed staff to develop some additional options, including possibly more institutional and office uses 
and less residential.  In the coming months there will be continued discussions with the community to 
gain additional insights.   
 
Ms. Burgess said the study includes a focus on the impacts each of the options would have.  Perteet 
Engineering has been hired to do the traffic modeling based on the worst-case scenario.   
 
Ms. Burgess said it is still very early in the process and the options will likely change as the study 
progresses, probably in the direction of a less intense land use pattern.  She said she will keep the 
Commission updated.   
 
Commissioner Northey encouraged opening the connection between the shopping center and the park.  
She also said the library is an integral part of the community, and consideration should be given to 
expand the space, and Ms. Burgess said that is underway.   
 
Commissioner Northey said she would prefer to see a layout that does not include parking along 156th 
Avenue NE.  She suggested that people will quickly figure out where the parking is even if they cannot 
see it from the street.  She said she has not yet made up her mind concerning the proposing housing.  
The site should include some water features.   
 
Commissioner Glass agreed the streetside parking along 156th Avenue NE should go away.  He asked 
about parking for Top Foods and Ms. Burgess allowed that the schematic drawings of the options do 
not show it clearly.  Parking for the grocery store will certainly be retained.   
 



 
 
Bellevue Transportation Commission 
November 10, 2005  Page 4 

 B. TFP: Candidate Prioritization List 
 
Kristi Oosterveen, CIP Coordinator, reported that over 30 members of the public attended the TFP open 
house event earlier in the evening.   
 
Capital Programming Manager Eric Miller reported that I-912 failed at the polls.  He said the budget 
office is seeking answers to issues concerning restricted and unrestricted gas tax revenues.  It appears 
all of the new revenue is unrestricted to local jurisdictions, meaning that Bellevue will be able to 
allocate its share of the funds however it wants within the transportation program.  He said he hopes to 
have an updated revenue forecast prepared for the November 17 Commission meeting.   
 
Answering a question asked about project OV-001, Mr. Miller said the BROTS project is part of the 
interlocal agreement between Bellevue and Redmond.  The project did not make it into the current TFP 
for a variety of reasons, not the least of which are the significant property impacts.  At 156th Avenue 
NE and Bel-Red Road there is another BROTS project to add a southbound right-turn lane that 
Microsoft has committed to build through its development agreement with Redmond.  Project OV-002 
at Bel-Red Road and NE 24th Street will add another right-turn lane.  The results of the Microsoft-
sponsored project will be analyzed before deciding if OV-001 will be necessary.  OV-001 scored high 
because of the number of accidents in the corridor, and an increased capacity often reduces congestion, 
which in turn reduces the potential for accidents.   
 
Commissioner Northey commented that an improved V/C ratio resulting from an improved level of 
service will not necessarily translate into improved travel times through the corridor.  Mr. Miller agreed 
and said that is a perfect example of why the scoring process is only one step in the process of 
developing the TFP project list.   
 
There was consensus that project OV-001 should be moved down on the list.   
 
Ms. Oosterveen said NB-104 was scored against both the roadway/intersection and bicycle/pedestrian 
criteria because it has elements of both.  She said it scored high against both because it improves the 
level of service and adds ped/bike facilities.   
 
With regard to CR-001, a project in the vicinity of NB-104, Mr. Miller said it is also a BROTS project 
with a significant Redmond contribution.  The estimated cost, however, has grown beyond the initial 
cost estimate and to have Redmond pay its fair share the two Councils will have to approve the project 
cost increase.  The project could be combined with the U-turn project, CR-100.   
 
Mr. Miller explained that OV-005 is not currently in the BROTS agreement; it came about as a part of 
the BROTS North-South Corridor Study.   The project costs could be shared by Bellevue and Redmond 
through an amendment of the BROTS agreement.   
 
Commissioner Young asked if the recently completed NE 29th Street project adds to the load on the 
intersection.  Mr. Miller said it actually relieves the load on the intersection, but the intersection 
remains very congested.   
 
Commissioner Young suggested that OV-005 will add needed queuing capacity, but questioned 
whether or not the project will benefit bicyclists.   
 
Regarding EB-105, the West Lake Sammamish Parkway project, Commissioner Young stressed the 
need to break the overall project into pieces that can be addressed individually.  Mr. Miller said staff 



 
 
Bellevue Transportation Commission 
November 10, 2005  Page 5 

will bring back on November 17 a proposal for getting to the 50 percent design phase for the full 
corridor at a minimum.  He said staff will possibly include a recommendation for a placeholder for the 
first high-priority segment.  Getting to the 50 percent design stage will increase the likelihood of getting 
grants for the project.   
 
Chair Bell expressed concern over getting the entire corridor to the 50 percent design level given that it 
will take so long to get the full project constructed.  He allowed that things change over time that could 
render the design infeasible.   
 
Commissioner Northey asked if EG-104 is intended in part to turn Eastgate Way into a preferred bike 
route; she said she thought SE 36th is supposed to be the bike route connecting to the I-90 bike lanes.  
Chair Bell said during the Eastside study it was decided to move the preferred bike route to Eastgate 
Way to have better connections with systems continuing on to the east.   
 
Commissioner Young questioned the need for sidewalks along Eastgate Way.  Kris Liljeblad, Assistant 
Director, Transportation Planning, pointed out that the Eastgate park and ride lot is nearby and that the 
Factoria area on the south side of the freeway has quite a lot of residential uses.  The center I-90 HOV 
lanes will move a lot of transit services to the Eastside park and ride lot, and pedestrians who have 
become accustomed to accessing transit services in Factoria adjacent to Richards Road will increase the 
demand for pedestrian facilities on Eastgate Way.  With regard to the bike lanes, he commented that I-
90 serves as a huge barrier and bike facilities are needed on both sides of the freeway.   
 
Commissioner Northey said she rides through the tunnel under I-90, allowing that it could certainly be 
improved to make it safer.  She said it is safer to ride on SE 36th because the route crosses fewer 
freeway interchanges, and that is the corridor that should be improved for bicyclists.  Mr. Liljeblad 
observed that construction of the center HOV lanes on I-90 will reduce the amount of room to expand 
between the right-of-way fence and the paved shoulder, making it nearly impossible to add a sidewalk 
and a wider bike lane or separated path on SE 36th.   
 
With regard to CR-100, Jen Benn, Grants Coordinator, said the project description does not match the 
information in her grant file, which shows the project located at the intersection of Bel-Red Road and 
156th Avenue NE.  She drew a map of the project as she understands it and noted that turning 
movements there are leading to accidents.   
 
Mr. Miller said staff will verify the project description for the November 17 Commission meeting.   
 
Commissioner Northey asked why DT-101 is not contemplated as part of the private development that 
is going on in the area.  Mr. Liljeblad said the project lacks a nexus.  The project is an important part of 
implementing the one-way couplet.  He agreed that it would be desirable to have a private developer 
pay for the project, but the adjacent construction project will be adding traffic to the couplet itself rather 
onto NE 8th Street, at least for the current phase.  The couplet cannot be implemented without DT-101.  
He agreed to add that statement to the project description.   
 
Mr. Miller said the proposed cost estimate for EB-100 is sufficient to complete the 145th Place aspects 
and sidewalks on SE 22nd Street.  The pre-design work has already been done.   
 
Chair Bell commented that the section between SE 8th Street and SE 16th Street is a complete street 
with turn lanes and full curb, gutter and sidewalk.  There may be a need to add a right-turn lane onto 
Kamber Road, but it would be a shame to tear up the road.  He said he could support moving the project 
down on the list.   



 
 
Bellevue Transportation Commission 
November 10, 2005  Page 6 

 
Answering a question asked by Commissioner Glass, Mr. Miller said the section between SE 8th Street 
and Lake Hills Boulevard is covered by the existing placeholder in the project budget.   
 
Chair Bell asked if the intersection of Kamber Road and 145th Place will be completed with the project 
currently under construction.  Mr. Liljeblad said the project will only construct the SE 16th Street side 
of the intersection; 145th will still need to be improved to the south.  The only sidewalk on 145th south 
of the intersection goes into a residential neighborhood and terminates.  From there down to Bellevue 
Community College there is only a paved shoulder and a path on the east side.   
 
Commissioner Glass lobbied in favor of completing the section between Lake Hills Boulevard and SE 
16th Street.   
 
With regard to NE-001, Commissioner Northey asked why bike lanes should be constructed on Northup 
Way if NE 24th Street is the bike route.  Mr. Liljeblad commented that Northup is a lot flatter route 
than NE 24th Street, adding that there are few pedestrian improvements along Northup to speak of even 
though there is transit service and a lot of employment along the roadway.  Commissioner Northey 
pointed out that as described the project has no pedestrian facilities.  Mr. Miller said he will verify if 
sidewalks are intended to be part of the project description.   
 
Commissioner Yuen asked why the project scored so high in terms of level of service.  Mr. Miller said 
left-turn lanes improve traffic flow by allowing through vehicles to continue without stopping behind 
vehicles waiting to turn left.   
 
Turning to EB-001, Mr. Miller said the project likely will be recommended by staff.   
 
Commissioner Young pointed out that NE 8th Street is a major thoroughfare, and the left-turn queue at 
148th Avenue NE is very short, causing the traffic to back up.  There is also a transit stop near the car 
wash that U-turn traffic conflicts with.  He argued in favor of moving the project up in priority.   
 
Chair Bell said he was surprised to see how low the scoring for level of service is for DT-002, the one-
way couplet.  Mr. Liljeblad said a great deal of capacity can be gained by eliminating the left-turn 
movements at the major intersections.  The contra-flow lane needed to access the transit center will 
require some special signalization which will to some degree reduce the flow benefits.   
 
Commissioner Young asked if the overall project could be broken into smaller pieces.  Mr. Liljeblad 
said the most important section is between NE 4th Street and NE 8th Street.  However, the whole 
project needs to go forward together.  The challenge will be the signalization and signage elements 
necessary to make it all work.   
 
Mr. Miller said project OV-002 is the project that should be done in conjunction with the Microsoft 
project instead of OV-001.   
 
Answering a question asked by Chair Bell regarding DT-009, Mr. Liljeblad said the project extends NE 
2nd Street from 116th Avenue NE to the freeway.  Eventually the road will have to be extended across 
the freeway as the counterpart to the NE 10th Street overpass.  Access to the Downtown will not work 
without the project.   
 
Commissioner Northey proposed holding off on projects in the Bel-Red area until the corridor study is 
completed.  Mr. Miller agreed at least insofar as BN-005 is concerned.   



 
 
Bellevue Transportation Commission 
November 10, 2005  Page 7 

 
Chair Bell said the project is needed but should be done as part of the development in the area.  He 
proposed lowering the project on the list.   
 
Commissioner Glass suggested that there should at least be a placeholder created for Bel-Red projects.  
Undoubtedly some projects will come out of the corridor study.  There was agreement to consider 
taking that approach.   
 
Commissioner Northey questioned why the level of service scoring for EG-003 was not higher given 
that it will reduce intersection delay.  Chair Bell said he had the same question.  Mr. Miller said the 
project does not offer a clear V/C ratio benefit.   
 
There was agreement to push the project higher on the list.   
 
Commissioner Northey said she could support putting BN-008 lower on the list.  The other 
Commissioners concurred.   
 
Mr. Miller suggested that the magnitude of cost shown for project OV-003 will likely prove to be too 
low.  There was agreement to put the project lower in the list awaiting the outcome of the Bel-Red 
corridor study.   
 
Ms. Oosterveen said the recently completed Lakemont Boulevard analysis broke the overall project into 
three phases.  Project NC-102 represents the first phase.   
 
Commissioner Northey said the project is needed.  Mr. Miller commented that the second phase of the 
project, NC-103, scored very low.  There is the sentiment among staff, however, that NC-102 cannot be 
done with doing NC-103 at the same time.   
 
There was agreement to move NC-102 up on the list.  Mr. Liljeblad said the recommendation of staff 
will likely be the same.   
 
Mr. Liljeblad pointed out that the amount shown for DT-005 is a local share placeholder in case one is 
required.   
 
Commissioner Northey said she would like to see EG-001 raised up on the list.  Chair Bell concurred.  
 
Mr. Miller said the BROTS project BN-001 is recommended by the NE 10th Street extension and the 
Overlake Hospital expansion EIS.  The city is hoping the state will pay for the project when the NE 
12th Street overcrossing is rebuilt.   
 
Commissioner Northey asked why SB-001 is needed.  Mr. Liljeblad said the project flowed from the 
previous Downtown plan.  The project was not carried forward as part of the Downtown 
Implementation Plan update and staff will not be recommending retaining it on the list.   
 
Mr. Miller agreed that NC-104, which is the third phase of the Lakemont Boulevard project, does not 
need to be any higher on the list.   
 
Ms. Oosterveen said BN-003 is in the current CIP for a pre-design analysis.  Mr. Miller said it is likely 
the project will be impacted by the recommendations of the Bel-Red corridor study.   
 



 
 
Bellevue Transportation Commission 
November 10, 2005  Page 8 

Chair Bell noted that DT-007 will be up to the Washington State Department of Transportation.   
 
Mr. Miller suggested OV-004 should be made part of the scope of OV-005 since it involves another leg 
of the same intersection.   
 
Mr. Liljeblad allowed that FA-001 offers limited benefit during the day.  The main issue is associated 
with the peak of the peak period.  Chair Bell suggested consideration should at least be given to 
splitting out the access to St. Margaret’s Church.   
 
There was agreement to leave OV-100 on the list in the order shown.   
 
Mr. Miller noted that EG-002 has a high benefit-to-cost ratio.  The project lies on the state’s right-of-
way and as such there may be a way to have them pay for it or at least share the cost with the city.   
 
Mr. Miller said a pre-design study for FA-003 has already been completed.  One argument for keeping 
it in the TFP is to help the city require developers to dedicate the needed right-of-way.   
 
There were no objections to CR-002.   
 
Mr. Miller said DT-008 connects NE 2nd Street with the new NE 2nd Street overcrossing.  The project 
has been funded with a grant for pre-design, and staff may recommend a placeholder to help the project 
along toward implementation.   
 
Chair Bell and Commissioner Northey asked staff to review the level of service score for the project.   
 
Commissioner Northey asked if DT-003 could be paid for with discretionary funds.  Mr. Miller said 
staff has had that conversation concerning both DT-03 and DT-004.   
 
Turning to the ped/bike projects list, Ms. Oosterveen said NH-104 is in an area of the city for which the 
Neighborhood Enhancement Program gets a lot of requests.  The project has a lot of citizen support.  
 
Commissioner Northey said she could see no need for RV-101; there was agreement to put it lower on 
the list.   
 
Commissioner Young RV-100 noted that there are pedestrian facilities on the west side of 128th 
Avenue SE.  Ms. Oosterveen said the project includes facilities where they are missing, adding that the 
project has Neighborhood Enhancement Program support.   
 
Commissioner Northey questioned the need for the bike lane component of NE-100, allowing that the 
sidewalk component may make sense.   
 
Ms. Oosterveen said SB-100 has community support.  It serves Enatai Elementary School and connects 
to the I-90 trail near Enatai Beach Park.  Mr. Miller said staff will probably recommend the project but 
with sidewalks on one side of the roadway rather than both.   
 
Mr. Miller said staff will likely not recommend NE-101.   
 
Commissioner Northey argued in favor of moving BT-100 higher on the list.  She said the safety score 
looks low to her given that there is nowhere for anyone to walk on NE 40th Street.  There was 
agreement to give the project a higher priority.   



 
 
Bellevue Transportation Commission 
November 10, 2005  Page 9 

 
Commissioner Young suggesting placing EB-102 higher on the list.  There was agreement to do so.   
 
Commissioner Northey called for raising NC-107 up on the list.  Mr. Miller noted that the project 
connects with NC-100 and provides pedestrian access to Eastgate Elementary School.  It is also a 
maintenance project.  The project has received quite a lot of neighborhood support in the past.  There 
was agreement to raise the project higher on the list.   
 
Chair Bell asked if there is sufficient right-of-way for EG-102.  Mr. Liljeblad said the intent is to use 
the Bellevue Community College roadway from 148th Avenue SE through the campus to the Eastgate 
park and ride lot.  The project would improve the existing asphalt path that parallels the roadway to the 
campus.  There are, however, a number of driveways and issues with sight distance.   The project would 
help to complete the Mountains to Sound Trail and would have to be constructed in partnership with 
that organization and Bellevue Community College.   
 
Commissioner Glass suggested that with all of the other ped/bike projects that need to be done, EG-102 
should not be placed too high on the list.  Mr. Liljeblad agreed and added that part of the reason for 
keeping the project on the list is to allow a partnership with Bellevue Community College at some 
future point.   
 
Commissioner Northey said she would like to see EB-104 moved up on the list.  Mr. Liljeblad noted 
that there is a partial sidewalk in place already constructed as a Neighborhood Enhancement Program 
project.  Commissioner Northey said there is a section that is missing and suggested the project 
description could be pared down to focus just on the gap.   
 
With regard to EB-106, Mr. Liljeblad said the section of Lake Hills Boulevard between 140th Avenue 
SE to 143rd Avenue SE is fully improved with sidewalks on both sides and bike lanes.  Between 143rd 
Avenue SE and 148th Avenue SE there are asphalt strip sidewalks on the back side of the curb with 
bike lanes, and the proposed project would improve the section with new curb, gutter and sidewalk.   
 
Commissioner Northey argued in favor of having sidewalks on at least one side of SE 26th Street 
because it is a school route.  She suggested that the bike lanes part of EB-103 could be eliminated.   
 
Ms. Oosterveen said NC-100 was the Commission’s top priority during the last CIP update for available 
resources.  Mr. Miller added that the project is a voted Neighborhood Enhancement Program project 
which makes $150,000 available.  There was agreement to place the project higher on the list.   
 
Chair Bell said EG-109 is not a good project in that it does not meet any safety standards.  Mr. Liljeblad 
suggested the existing conditions of the tunnel could be improved by restriping the travel lanes and 
moving the fog line in closer.  It is not unusual in the Puget Sound area for traffic to encounter ten- or 
eleven-foot lanes.  That could result in additional room on the shoulders for bicyclists to ride.  Chair 
Bell said he would not support narrower lanes and suggested the city should put up a sign directing 
bicyclists to walk their bikes through the tunnel.   
 
Commissioner Northey proposed that simply installing a fence along the sidewalk would provide some 
level of comfort for pedestrians and bicyclists.   
 
With regard to NH-102, Commissioner Young said he could support having a sidewalk on only one 
side of the roadway.  One sidewalk is better than none, and by putting them on only one side of the 
roadway the available funds can be made to go further.   



 
 
Bellevue Transportation Commission 
November 10, 2005  Page 10 

 
Mr. Liljeblad explained that FA-102 involves the steep hill on the back side of Factoria and makes a 
connection between the single family neighborhood and the elementary school.  Commissioner Northey 
said she could support raising the priority status for the project. 
 
Mr. Miller said NE-104 is primarily a maintenance project.  He said staff will probably not propose 
including it in the TFP, adding that it will be a candidate for the CIP in any event because of the 
maintenance need.   
 
Mr. Miller said staff will push for NC-108 because it is the last gravel road remaining in Bellevue.  He 
said staff is currently investigating what the annual maintenance costs are for the road to determine how 
soon the paving project will pay for itself.   
 
8. OLD BUSINESS – None 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS – None 
 
10. PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS  
 
Mr. Bill Serr, 1412 153rd Place SE, thanked the Commission for recommending putting the SE 16th 
project higher on the list.  He highlighted the need for a sidewalk section along SE 8th Street to the west 
of 148th Avenue SE.  He commented that the East Bellevue area generally needs some attention.  A lot 
of people are using SE 16th to get to the trails and when it is dark it is dark.  It is too bad the power 
poles are in the wrong location and serve as obstacles.   
 
11. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – None 
 
12. REVIEW CALENDAR 
 
 A. Commission Calendar and Agenda  
 
The Commission reviewed the items scheduled for discussion in upcoming meetings.   
 
 B. Public Involvement Calendar 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner Young.  Second was by Commissioner Glass and the 
motion carried unanimously.   
 
Chair Bell adjourned the meeting at 9:27 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
              
Secretary to the Transportation Commission    Date 
 
 



 
 
Bellevue Transportation Commission 
November 10, 2005  Page 11 

              
Chairperson of the Transportation Commission    Date 
 
 


